
Rogue Workforce Partnership 
Workforce Board Meeting 
Pacific Retirement Services    Third Floor, Washington Room    1 W. Main St., Medford 
September 23, 2015    2:00 – 5:00 pm + post-meeting networking social 5:15p at The Bohemian Club, 123 W. Main  
Video/Phone Conference access: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/623789757.  Please activate (share) your webcam & select your 
audio preference. 1) Telephone: 1+872-240-3412; Access Code: 623-789-757 (long distance charges will apply); 2) or, use computer 
microphone &speakers (headset is required, or use mute to avoid reverb).  
 

Agenda  

1. Welcome & Introductions  (5m)       Jessica Gomez  

2. Consent Agenda  -  Action Item  (1-5m)    Jessica  
Consent agenda items are voted on as a block unless a member wishes to pull an agenda item(s) out for discussion 

• Approval of Minutes – March 9, 2015    
• Approval of Minutes  -  May 11, 2015    
• Local Plan Modifications  
• Appointment of Equal Opportunity Officer  

3. State & Regional Coordination  
• Strategic Plan & Dashboard  (5m)        Jessica, Jim 

4. Workforce & Education System Transformation    
 

a. Sector Strategies (30m) 

• Overview  Aurora King, Graham Hetland 
• Update, Coordination & Next Steps   
 Advanced Manufacturing Group  Jessica, Mike Donnelly 
 Information Technology/E-Commerce  Graham, Aurora 
 Healthcare Workforce Steering Committee  Gregg Edwards, Brent Kell 

 
b. Certified Work Ready Communities (15m)  Aurora, Brent, John Young 

• National Career Readiness Certificate 
 

c. Systems Innovation 
 

• WorkSource Oregon Centers           Jim Fong  
 ResCare Workforce Services  (45m) 
 Introduction of New WIOA & DHS Service Provider     Michael Vu, Tabitha Carlson 

 
 Service Provider Transition - Update, Q&A, Workforce Board Review  Aurora King, Rene’ Brandon, 

Melissa Wolff, Rosemary 
Jernigan 

 
 Affirming Selection of ResCare as WIOA & DHS Service Provider - Action Item  Jessica, Jim  

 
 
 
 

 Additional Grants/Funding for WorkSource Center Services  (15 m)  Jim, Aurora & Melissa 

= Documents are attached or will be handed out at the meeting 
 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/623789757


 Job-Driven National Emergency Grant 
 Back to Work Oregon  
 TANF Pilot & Health Professions Opportunity Grant      
 Rethinking Job Search 
 American Apprenticeship Grant (Manufacturing)   
 

 Incumbent Worker & On-the-Job Training Policy -  Action Item   (15-20m)   Jim & Aurora 
 

 Update on Layoffs & Rapid Response   (5-10m)     Aurora   
  

 

• Southern Oregon Success  (30m) 
 College & Careers for All Hub         John Higgins, Brian Shumate 
 K-12 Perspective                        Teresa Sayre, Scott Beveridge 
 Higher Education Perspective       Kirk Gibson, Steve Thorpe,  

Sue Walsh, Chris Maples 
 

 Careers in Gear – Business Plan & Leightman-Maxey Grant Application  René Brandon   

5. News & Links  (5-10m)   Jim 
• Oregon Annual Job Growth Reach 10-Year High   
• Haves, Have-Nots in Jackson County Further Apart Than Ever - Medford Mail Tribune   

http://www.mailtribune.com/article/20150913/NEWS/150919958 

• Character’s Content -  Angela Duckworth, University of Pennsylvania -  
https://sites.sas.upenn.edu/duckworth 
http://www.upenn.edu/gazette/0512/PennGaz0512_feature4.pdf 

• Assessing the Investment in College - Peter Cappelli, The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania  
 JPR: http://ijpr.org/post/assessing-investment-college%20-%20stream/0#stream/0 

PBS: http://www.pbs.org/newshour/bb/getting-college-degree-doesnt-always-pay/ 

• Should Everyone Go To College?   -  Brookings Institute   
http://www.brookings.edu/research/papers/2013/05/08-should-everyone-go-to-college-owen-sawhill 
http://thedianerehmshow.org/shows/2013-05-08/who-benefits-college-and-why 

6. Group Feedback on New Meeting Structure (5m)    Jim 

7. Other Business   Gregg 

8. Adjourn        Gregg 
  

 
Join us for a Networking Social immediately after our meeting, 5:15 pm 
at The Bohemian Club, 123 W. Main Street.  
We’ll be outside on the back porch. 

http://www.mailtribune.com/article/20150913/NEWS/150919958
https://sites.sas.upenn.edu/duckworth
http://www.upenn.edu/gazette/0512/PennGaz0512_feature4.pdf
http://ijpr.org/post/assessing-investment-college%20-%20stream/0%23stream/0
http://www.pbs.org/newshour/bb/getting-college-degree-doesnt-always-pay/
http://www.brookings.edu/research/papers/2013/05/08-should-everyone-go-to-college-owen-sawhill
http://thedianerehmshow.org/shows/2013-05-08/who-benefits-college-and-why


                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                           
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

ROGUE WORKFORCE PARTNERSHIP 
March 9, 2015 

Pacific Retirement Services – Third Floor, Washington Room 
1 W. Main St., Medford, OR 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    
Wes Brain, Michael Donnelly, Jim Fong, Ron Fox, Jessica Gomez, John Higgins*, Pete Karpa, Brent Kell*, 
Michael Kidwell, Tolga Latif*, Doug Mares, Tamara Nordin, Teresa Sayre, Lyndell Smith,  

*= via phone 
 
QUORUM PRESENT: Yes  
 
OTHERS ATTENDING: 
Oregon Employment Department: Sherri Stratton, Guy Tauer, Tamara Schroeder  
Department of Human Services: Melissa Wolff 
Southern Oregon University:  Sue Walsh, Provost     (pending appointment) 
Southern Oregon ESD: Gwyn Lema 
College Dreams: Stacie Grier 
Southern Oregon Goodwill Industries: Shae Johns, Matt Chesler 
Rogue Community College: Genna Southworth, Brandon Bretl 
Easter Seals: Linda Chase 
Junior Achievement: Deanna Wilson 
BBSI: Suz Montemayor, Joe Rossi 
The Job Council:  Aurora King, Graham Hetland, Rene’ Brandon, Sherri Emitte, Kristen Anderson, Ken 
Heindsmann, Tami Allison 
   
All meetings of the Rogue Workforce Partnership are recorded should reference be desired in addition to the minutes.   
 

1) CALL TO ORDER, WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS:  
The RWP meeting was called to order by Chair Jessica Gomez at 7:39 am. Introductions were made. 
 

2) CONSENT AGENDA:  
TAMARA NORDIN MOVED TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA AS PRESENTED. THE MOTION WAS 
SECONDED BY MICHAEL DONNELLY AND WAS UNANIMOUSLY APPROVED. 

  
3) GUIDE, INFORM & LEAD STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS  

National Coordination   
• WIOA Implementation – Today’s packet contains a handout “National Framework – Side-by-side 

Comparison of WIA- WIOA” that should be helpful in answering some questions on the differences 
between the two laws.   
 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
January 12, 2015 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

Pete added that from a VR perspective, it has caused change in the way that they do business by 
expanding the current services. “A goal of the WHESP (the RWP’s Workforce & Higher Education 
System Partners Sub-Committee) group is how to align the services”, Pete stated. VR has been 
operating retroactive back to the July 1, 2014 date that the law passed.  

 
• U.S. Department of Labor Guidance Letter – TEGL 19-14 “Vision for the Workforce System and 

Initial Implementation of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014” is also available 
in today’s packet for reference. 

 
Regional Coordination 

• Governance Update – Jim presented the Daily Courier article about The Job Council and indicated 
about 90% of the article was accurate. The group was also updated on the transition and that we 
are continuing to move forward aggressively to have a new service provider in place by July 1, 
2015. 

 
Sherri E. reported that new GASB rules state that as of June 30, 2015, pension liability must appear 
on an organization’s balance sheet. The oddity, however, is that the regular unfunded liability has 
to appear; however, the larger transitional liability does not. Jim and Sherri notified PERS last week, 
by phone that TJC would be dissolving as of June 30, 2015. TJC has been asked to forward 
information to PERS which will be done in the very near future. PERS will be assessing options and 
determining their next steps in response to The Job Councils’ dissolution. 
 

• Procurement for WorkSource Oregon Center – WIOA & DHS  Service Provider -The joint 
procurement document (RFP 3974) is in review with DAS and DOJ, and will be published as soon as 
it is approved. The response and review time will be shortened to meet the time constraints due to 
the late publishing of the RFP. 
 

• Using The Job Council Brand Name – RWP members were in agreement that the Job Council name 
should be preserved.  RON FOX MOVED TO PROCEED WITH PRESERVING THE JOB COUNCIL NAME 
AS LONG AS IT MAKES DENSE. THE MOTION WAS SECONDED BY DOUG MARES AND WAS 
APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
• New RWP Website & Logo – Graham reported that we have started using a new logo that was 

voted on by about 6 WIB members even though there have been some suggestions about the font. 
Graham will explore some different font options and will email out to the group for additional 
comments.  

 
A skeleton of the new RWP website is running to host the RFP. Graham reviewed the website, and 
the RWP Facebook page with the group. Several suggestions were made for revisions: 
 Discuss with SOREDI, SVTG, and Medford Chamber to see how best to link to business 
 Have a page for each sector and link out to other sites 
 Be clear about who the audience is – more links, less content 
 Fonts should be bold in order to stand out better 
 Need a way to track the traffic to the site, where they go, and how long they stay 

 
4) STRATEGIC PLAN IMPLEMENTATION & WORKFORCE/EDUCATION  SYSTEM TRANSFORMATION 

Sector Strategies 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
January 12, 2015 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

• Advanced Manufacturing & E-Commerce/Info Tech - Convened a work group in December where 
national consultants attended and helped in walking through data from various sectors. Group came 
together and will be launching some events to bring companies together to go through a process of 
modest surveying and skill/asset mapping. A second meeting is scheduled for March 18, 2015. It was 
suggested that a social event or some kind of common event could attract businesses to attend.  Also 
suggested was having a one page document (similar to the healthcare page) showing career access, as 
well as de-segmenting and splitting out by specialty.  

• Healthcare -Great conversation took place at the last steering committee meeting where we debriefed 
the January Legislative event. The group is excited to begin mapping out career pathways within the 
healthcare industry.  

Southern Oregon Success 
• Governance and Organizational Update – Jim reported that we are attempting to create a more 

coordinated oversight including College & Careers for All, etc. A governance proposal will be taken to 
Jefferson Regional Health Alliance, the Early Learning group, and brought back here to the next 
meeting. Jim indicated that we are leading the state in the work we are doing in this area. 

 
• Careers In Gear – Stacie reported that Careers in Gear will be held this Thursday March 12, 2015. 822 

students are officially pre-registered and there are more business people than ever before. Discussion 
took place around the need to get more educators exposed and it was indicated that schools have 
been encouraged to select teachers and counselors to be involved in the event. Stacie encouraged 
RWP members to attend, and a video that will be shown in the exhibit hall was shown to the members 
at the close of the meeting. 

  
5) OTHER BUSINESS 

 
No other business was brought before the Rogue Workforce Partnership. 

 
6) ADJOURN  

With no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 9:36 am. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Tami Allison 
Executive Team Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
/tka 
APPROVED: 
_____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Chair        Date 



                                                                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                           
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

ROGUE WORKFORCE PARTNERSHIP 
May 11, 2015 

Pacific Retirement Services – Third Floor, Washington Room 
1 W. Main St., Medford, OR 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    
Michael Donnelly, Jim Fong, Ron Fox, Jessica Gomez, Tanya Haakinson, John Higgins*, Pete Karpa, Brent Kell*,  
Tolga Latif*, Doug Mares, Tamara Nordin 
 
*= via phone  
QUORUM PRESENT: Yes   
OTHERS ATTENDING: 
Governor’s Workforce & Labor Policy Advisor – Elana Pirtle-Guiney 
ResCare Workforce Services – Michael Vu* 
Oregon Employment Department: Tamara Schroeder, Guy Tauer  
Department of Human Services: Melissa Wolff, Rosemary Jernigan 
Southern Oregon ESD: Gwyn Lema 
City of Eagle Point: Jonathan Bilden 
City of Grants Pass: Don Abbott 
College Dreams: Stacie Grier 
Southern Oregon Goodwill Industries: Shae Johns, Matt Chesler 
BBSI: Suz Montemayor, Joe Rossi 
The Job Council:  Aurora King, Graham Hetland, Rene’ Brandon, Sherri Emitte, Rob Hegeman, Tami Allison 
   
All meetings of the Rogue Workforce Partnership are recorded should reference be desired in addition to the minutes.   
 

1) CALL TO ORDER, WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS:  
The RWP meeting was called to order by Tamara Nordin at 7:42 am. Introductions were made. 
 

2) CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
DUE TO LACK OF A QUORUM, NO ACTION WAS TAKEN. 
   

3) STRATEGIC PLAN IMPLEMENTATION & WORKFORCE / EDUCATION SYSTEM TRANSFORMATION  
Sector Stragegies   

• Engineering Job Seekers Cohort / Employer Networking – Jim reported that he was contacted by 
an individual laid off from Erickson Aircrane who was looking at other career paths. Currently, the 
individual is working in a temporary position at CareStream.  
 
Jim introduced Rob Hegeman, Business Employment Specialist with The Job Council who facilitates 
the weekly Job Net workshop where job seekers attend regularly. Rob spoke to the group about 
the need for job seekers to have a way to make connections with local employers (informational 
interviews) and “make the first impression”.  Aurora added that the Job Net was originally designed 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2015 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

as the finale’ for Foundational Skills Workshop. “It is a great opportunity for facilitators to motivate 
and re-energize the job seeker”, Aurora added.  
 
Jim went on to add that we are trying to systematize networking; tying sector strategy work to the 
work we are doing at the OneStop. 
 
Rob announced that more employers are needed to attend Job Net and that he would like to 
create a list of employers interested in doing informational interviews. An email will be sent to 
employers asking them to sign up if they are interested.  
 

Systems Innovation-  
• Southern Oregon Success - Jim presented information on Southern Oregon Success and a draft 

governance document. “The concept is that we are bringing together education, social service, 
healthcare, and business so children and youth can succeed”, Jim stated. The RWP is a key partner 
and convener in this effort. What’s next: 
 Fleshing out common performance outcomes / metrics. 
 Implementing applicable best practices from South Texas and Louisville, KY. 
 More partnership, program / investment alignment and synergy taking place at all levels of 

the continuum than has ever been seen before.  
 
4) GUIDE, INFORM & LEAD STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS  

National Coordination 
• U.S. Department of Labor –  

Fact sheets and draft WIOA regulations are available in today’s packet. Jim highlighted the 
governance and leadership handout that includes streamlined membership and describes the roles 
and responsibilities. He then introduced Elana Pirtle-Guiney the Governor’s Workforce & Labor 
Policy advisor. Elana introduced herself and indicated that she is traveling around the state to visit 
the different workforce boards. Elana stated that the focus is making sure there is as much 
consistency as possible, and that we have a results-driven system. Elana shared the Governor’s 
priorities: 
 Collaboration 

 How do we get all regional systems working together? 
 Bridging regional collaboratives critical to moving Oregon forward  

 Equity 
 “Hard to serve” populations 
 Families in generational poverty 
 Communities of color 
 Rural communities 
 Do we know how to reach these populations? 

 Accountability 
 Are we actually meeting our goals that we established? 
 Decide locally the plan for reaching the set goals 
 Best way to approach our population 
 Do we need state resources to assist? 

 Results driven and outcome based 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2015 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

 How are we thinking about our results in the long term? 
 Assure program alignment 
 Getting the worker more job ready 

 
Elana challenged the group to look at who achieves the best results for the population as a whole, but 
also where the gaps are in what service providers do well.  

 Who can you bring in to reach your rural communities? 
 Where are the gaps in the work being done – need to review data 
 How are the Coordinated Care Organizations reaching out to people? 
 How are the STEM Hubs being inclusive? 
 Who are we leaving behind? 

 
Elana asked that if any workforce board members have relationships with legislators to talk to them 
and provide messaging points for advocacy. 
 
Pete Karpa spoke about the section in WIOA that highlights better access to workforce programs for 
those who are disabled, and asked if there was a conversation happening with the Governor regarding 
disability. “We need to become better at working with those who have disabilities”, Pete stated. Elana 
indicated that this is currently being reviewed, and would like to see us move to a system where all 
individuals are being channeled through the OneStop with wrap around services being included and 
integrated with the workforce system services. 
 
Elana also indicated that a conversation is taking place with the Governor regarding whether it makes 
sense to have a Workforce Cabinet.  
 
• Local Board Chartering Checklist- Jim reported that each local board must be re-chartered for July 

1, 2015. Strategic planning work will start with the state plan due in March 2016.  Jim informed the 
board that he has completed a short checklist, sent by CCWD, indicating our compliance with the 
charter criteria versus the entire chartering criteria adopted by the OWIB last year.  

• Oregon Workforce Partnership – Video on Role of Workforce Board – The video will be shown at 
the end of the meeting if there’s time. 

 
Regional Coordination 

• Service Provider for WorkSource Oregon Centers –Jim reviewed the action brief with the group 
and indicated that the RWP Board of Directors approved and affirmed the selection of Arbor E&T, 
LLC, dba ResCare Workforce Services as the Rogue Valley’s WorkSource Oregon Service Provider 
beginning Program Year (PY) 2015 (July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016), with the option for one 
additional one-year contract and two additional two-year contracts at the discretion of the Rogue 
Workforce Partnership and the Oregon Department of Human Services on May 1, 2015. Jim asked 
the Workforce Board to affirm the board of director’s decision.  
 
Michael Vu, Director of Operations at ResCare, joined by phone and thanked the staff and the 
Board, and indicated their excitement to work with us.  
 
DUE TO LACK OF A QUORUM, AFFIRMATION WILL BE DEFFERED TO A FUTURE MEETING. 
 

• New Intergovernmental Agreement- Jim presented information on the Rogue Valley Workforce 
Consortium (RVWC) and indicated that one of their responsibilities is to appoint the Workforce 
Board.   
 



RWP Meeting Minutes 
May 11, 2015 
 

The RVWDC is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main Street, Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501  |  (541) 776-5100 

 
 

• New Workforce Development Board Configuration - The handout presented outlines two options:  
 Option A – Keep current K-20 Education and DHS Partners = total membership 35 
 Option B – Keep current K-20 Education and DHS Partners + add Oregon Tech = total 

membership 39 
Jim went on to say that in order to effectively manage attendance and decision-making, quorum 
requirements would be set at approximately the same actual number of members as the current 
level, but a lower percentage of the increased new membership total.  
 
RWP members present endorsed the following: 

a. Pursue Option B – Important to have Oregon Tech included, as well as more businesses 
b. Move to quarterly, longer meetings ( 3 hours) 
c. Schedule time for more in-depth discussion and decision-making at the full workforce  
             board meeting 
d. Sub-committees meet monthly and present to the Board for approval quarterly 

 
 

DUE TO LACK OF A QUORUM NO SPECIFIC ACTION WAS TAKEN. STAFF WILL MOVE FORWARD 
WITH THE GUIDANCE PROVIDED TO CREATE THE APPROPRIATE STRUCTURE. 
   

5) OTHER BUSINESS  
No other business was brought before the Rogue Workforce Partnership. 

 
6) ADJOURN  

With no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 9:36 am. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Tami Allison 
Executive Team Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
/tka 
APPROVED: 
_____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Chair        Date 



 

Action Brief 

To:   Rogue Workforce Partnership  

From:   Jim Fong, Executive Director 
 
Date:  September 23, 2015 

Subject:   Region 8 Local Plan Modifications 
 
Below you will see our region’s Workforce Investment Act (WIA) and Workforce Investment & 
Opportunity Act (WIOA) funding allocations for this program year: 
  

Program FY 15 PY 15/FY16 
FY 15 WIA Title 1B Adult 
(remaining 20%) 

 
$ 140,477 

 

FY 15 WIA Title 1B Dislocated Worker 
(remaining 20%) 

 
$ 135,978 

 

2% Transition Funds –  
WIA Adult 

 
$     6,640 

 

2% Transition Funds –  
WIA Dislocated Worker 

 
$   10,257 

 

PY 15 Formula Allocation-WIOA Title 
1B – Youth 
     Program 
     Admin 
     Total 

  
 

$ 754,955 
$   83,883 
$ 838,838 

PY 15 Formula Allocation – WIOA 
Title 1B – Adult 
     Program 
     Admin 
     Total 

  
 

$ 718,096 
$   79,788 
$ 797,884 

PY 15 Formula Allocation – WIOA 
Title 1B - Dislocated Worker 
     Program 
     Admin 
     Total 

  
 

$ 813,126             
$   90,347 
$ 903,473 

 
As the Local Workforce Development Board, the RWP needs to approve these allocations as part of 
a Local Plan Modification. These annual and additional WIA/WIOA funding allocations will be used 
to support the region’s One-Stop Center workforce services to Adults, Youth, and Dislocated 
Workers. 
 
Recommended Action: 
 
That the RWP approve the Allocations as indicated above. 

 
The RWP is a private/public partnership which addresses the employment needs of Jackson and Josephine Counties 

100 E. Main St., Suite A   |  Medford, OR 97501|  (541) 842-2500 



 

Action Brief 

To:   Rogue Workforce Partnership  

From:   Jim Fong, Executive Director 
 
Date:  September 23, 2015 

Subject:   Appointment of One Stop Equal Opportunity Officer 
 
Background 
  
The Rogue Workforce Partnership has the responsibility to appoint the Equal Opportunity Officer for the 
One Stop Center and One Stop System. EO Officers are responsible for handling any equal opportunity 
complaints against any of the One Stop partners located in the One Stop Center, at affiliate sites or at 
partner sites. 
 
The previous EO Officer was an employee of The Job Council which no longer exits due to the 
organization restructure.  
 
A review was conducted and the determination made that Sherri Emitte, Director of Administration for 
the Rogue Workforce Partnership, is best suited to serve in this role. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
It is recommended that the Rogue Workforce Partnership appoint Sherri Emitte as the regions Equal 
Opportunity Officer for the One Stop Center and One Stop System. 

 
 
 
 
 



for the full plan, please click on  http://www.oregon.gov/owib/boardmeetingsandevents/
documents/2015/9-18-15_Packet_Revised9.15.pdf 



 

Action Brief 

To:   Rogue Workforce Partnership  

From:   Jessica Gomez    Chair, Rogue Workforce Partnership  
 Jim Fong    Executive Director, Rogue Workforce Partnership 
 Doug Mares    Region Manager, Oregon Department of Human Services 

Date:  September 23, 2015 

Subject:   Selection of WorkSource Oregon Center Service Provider 
 
Background 
Pursuant to prior RWP authorization, a designated Selection Team has been actively working to review 
proposals submitted in response to a Request for Proposal, issued jointly by the Rogue Workforce 
Partnership and the Oregon Department of Human Services - in order to select a Service Provider for 
the Rogue Valley’s WorkSource Oregon Centers. Services to be provided include those funded through:  

• WIOA  - Adult & Dislocated Workers  (Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act) 
• TANF - JOBS  (Temporary Assistance to Needy Families - Job Opportunities and Basic Skills)  
• SNAP - OFSET   (Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program – Oregon Food Stamp Employment 

Transition)  
• WIOA - Out-of-School Youth 
• TANF – Teen Parent 

 
Proposal Review & Interview Process 
Four proposals were received from the following organizations: 

• College Dreams 
• Siskiyou Training & Employment Program, Inc. 
• Providence Community Services, Inc. dba Ross Innovative Employment Solutions  
• Arbor E&T, LLC, dba ResCare Workforce Services 

 
The following evaluation and selection process steps were then followed: 

 The College Dreams proposal failed to include a required component and, per the procurement 
guidelines, was removed from further consideration.  

 The remaining three proposals were reviewed and received the following aggregated scores: 
 

Proposer Aggregated Score 
(700 points possible) 

Siskiyou Training & Employment Program, Inc. 
 

343 

Providence Community Services, Inc. dba Ross 
Innovative Employment Solutions  

519 

Arbor E&T, LLC, dba ResCare Workforce Services 
 

612 



 Two top candidates were chosen for interviews. Interviews were held on April 24, 2015 with 
Providence Community Services, Inc. dba Ross Innovative Employment Solutions and Arbor E&T, 
LLC, dba ResCare Workforce Services. See attached Interview Questions. 

 Based on these interviews, Arbor E&T, LLC, dba ResCare Workforce Services was selected as a top 
candidate to engage in further evaluation activities. They submitted additional program information 
documents and budget scenario estimates, and were asked to return this week for a three day in-
depth review process which consisted of meetings with The Job Council staff, and follow-up 
discussions with the Selection Team. In addition, the Selection Team contacted references and 
gathered feedback as to the actual performance of Arbor E&T, LLC, dba ResCare Workforce Services 
in other One-Stop Centers across the nation. See attached documents describing this phase of the 
selection process, and also summarizing the reference information. 

 Upon completion of this process, the Selection Team met yesterday and unanimously arrived at a 
strong consensus decision to select Arbor E&T, LLC, dba ResCare Workforce Services as the Service 
Provider for the Rogue Valley’s WorkSource Oregon Centers – to provide services for all the funding 
streams designated for the WSO Centers. 

 

Since this is a joint procurement done in partnership between the Rogue Workforce Partnership and the 
Oregon Department of Human Services, the RWP Board of Directors must now take action to approve 
this selection.  

Representative members of the Selection Team will be available to discuss and answer questions about 
this evaluation and selection process in greater detail at the May 1st RWP Board of Directors meeting.  
 
Recommendation 
That the Rogue Workforce Partnership affirm the selection made by the Rogue Workforce Partnership 
Board of Directors at their May 1, 2015 meeting for Arbor E&T, LLC, dba ResCare Workforce Services to 
serve as the Rogue Valley’s WorkSource Oregon Service Provider beginning Program Year (PY) 2015 (July 
1, 2015 to June 30, 2016), with the option for one additional one-year contract and two additional two-
year contracts at the discretion of the Rogue Workforce Partnership and the Oregon Department of 
Human Services 
 
 
 
 



Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project 
 
A. Overarching Goal  

• To provide targeted community college career pathway training opportunities to TANF 
and ERDC clients that will result in them obtaining jobs with sufficient initial wages and 
wage progression so that they can move out of poverty, move off public assistance 
benefits and move into self-sufficiency. 

• To demonstrate innovative best practices for streamlining and integrating the services 
between WorkSource Oregon Centers and DHS programs. 

• To improve the health and vitality of the Southern Oregon economy through creating 
sustainable employment opportunities to benefit some of the most vulnerable citizens 
who have been affected by multigenerational poverty and other significant barriers to 
employment.   

• To create opportunity for younger generations of TANF and ERDC clients to visualize 
themselves prospering professionally and personally through witnessing their parents 
gaining success in education and the workforce.  

 

B. Geographic Scope 

• Jackson and Josephine Counties. 

 

C. Background 

• Building on Our Region’s Leadership Capacity in Cross-Agency Service Integration 

 This pilot project will build upon the region’s best practices in cross-agency service 
integration1 between the Rogue Workforce Partnership, Oregon Employment 
Department (OED), and Oregon Department of Human Services (DHS).  

 The Rogue Workforce Partnership (RWP) is the region’s federally authorized local 
Workforce Board and is a key catalytic leader in transforming Oregon public 
workforce system. RWP oversees the WorkSource Oregon (WSO) One-Stop Career 
Centers in the region. 
 

1 Oregon Secretary of State Audit Report, “Temporary Assistance for Needy Families: High Expectations, Stronger 
Partnerships, and Better Data Could Help More Parents Find Work,” April 2014 

                                                           



• Leading Efforts to Meet New Federal and State Requirements to Streamline Services & 
Improve Customer Service & Outcomes 

 Under the new federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), DHS and 
other workforce partners are required to intensify the integration of their workforce 
programs with the WSO Centers to create a more streamlined and unduplicated 
system. This pilot project will help lead the way in this streamlining effort.  

 Partners will develop, document and demonstrate best practice innovations that can 
be replicated in other regions of the state. 

 
 

D. Assumptions & Program Hypothesis 

• Current DHS JOBS Program contract and partnership configurations have not been 
updated since the early 1990s and do not uniformly take into account partnering with 
Oregon’s redesigned public workforce system created in 2007 by local Workforce 
Boards, the Oregon Employment Department, and the Office of Community Colleges 
and Workforce Development. As a result, in the majority of regions in the state, 
duplicate programs and service capacities exist side-by-side, with little coordination. 

In the Rogue Valley, we have integrated these services and created a set of Foundational 
Skills and cohort-based skills trainings in our WSO Centers that feed into next step 
Vocational Training and Worksite-Based Training (such as Back-to-Work Oregon On-the-
Job Training, JOBS Plus and Internships/Work Experience). 

• By further integrating these service capacities, we can leverage resources from multiple 
funding streams (TANF-JOBS, WIOA, etc.) and, when coupled with the additional 
capacities provided through this pilot project, we will be able to provide TANF and ERDC 
(post-TANF) clients with opportunities to make more significant and sustained progress 
along career pathways through a combination of vocational training and worksite 
training. 

• Like all individuals, TANF and ERDC clients have a very broad range of personal assets, 
capacities, interests, motivations and barriers in their path to greater self-sufficiency. 
Many clients have significant life challenges and barriers to overcome in order to 
progress (e.g., homelessness, medical conditions, domestic violence, mental health, 
substance abuse issues, etc.).2 Some clients display significant limitations in motivation 

2 See Adverse Childhood Experiences Study at http://www.cdc.gov/violenceprevention/acestudy/ and 
   SAMHSA - Trauma Informed Care link at http://www.samhsa.gov/nctic/trauma-interventions 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  2  
 

                                                           

http://www.cdc.gov/violenceprevention/acestudy/
http://www.samhsa.gov/nctic/trauma-interventions


and capacity to participate in self-sufficiency activities. Others exhibit great motivation, 
perseverance and tenacity to overcome hardship and achieve success.  

In addition, even highly motivated and capable clients face significant economic barriers 
as they get jobs, increase their wages and begin to lose eligibility for various public 
assistance benefits (TANF, Medicaid, Housing, ERDC, SNAP). These, so called, “benefit 
cliffs” represent real and daunting challenges for individuals, and many clients make a 
choice to go back on TANF rather than face these harsh economic uncertainties.  

This pilot project will focus on trying to make a difference for these strongly motivated 
clients and more capable clients - those who demonstrate sufficient motivation and 
capacity to make consistent progress in their efforts towards greater self-sufficiency. 
Our goal is to identify such clients, and provide them sufficient skill training 
opportunities and supports along the career pathway and benefit cliff continuum so that 
they leave all public assistance rolls and achieve true self-sufficiency. 

In focusing on such clients, our intention (and “theory of change”) is to better align 
WorkSource Oregon and DHS programs and capacities so that better career pathway 
training opportunities can be made available to these and other clients. And, that 
through a more thoughtful, efficient and intelligent use of public resources, we can 
produce better client outcomes, while saving taxpayer dollars.  

We also wish to create an upwardly spiraling effect on the entire public assistance 
system. By helping these clients to lift themselves up and out of poverty, and off public 
assistance benefits, our intention is to create the ongoing capacity, through integrated 
program delivery, for additional clients to step up and out, following in the footsteps of 
those who proceeded them. 

 
E. Outcomes / Success Measures 

We anticipate achieving the following program outcomes:  

• Reduction in TANF cases due to job placement and wage progression compared to 
comparable regions in the state (using longitudinal and as point-in-time data). 

• Increased opportunities and placements in high-wage, high-demand jobs for customers 
on ERDC and TANF compared to those who do not participate in this pilot. 

• Greater success in education and career placements for customers in this pilot project 
(compared to other TANF customers). 

• Reduced recidivism of cases back on to TANF, both from ERDC and post-TANF 
placement. 

• For those participants enrolled in this pilot project – track comparative rates of: 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  3  
 



 Participation Rate 

 Training/Activity Completion 

 WIOA and Other Resources Leveraged 

 Job Placement & Career Pathway Potential 

 Initial Wages  - we are targeting placements more than $12.39/hr & more than 
30 hrs/wk (ideally 40 hrs/wk) 

 Career and Wage Progression 

 Longitudinal data cohorts – track wages over time, 1-3-5 years – are we seeing 
wage progression; sense of hope, autonomy, intangibles, incentives (through 
surveys) 

• Relevant, timely, and targeted data to utilize in analyzing the effectiveness and return 
on investment for services designed for the TANF and ERDC customer-base.  

 Showing a moderate decrease in TANF caseload would demonstrate ROI 
 
 

F. Employer & Labor Market Demand 
 

• Labor market information and other pertinent evidence to show an unmet need:  
The TANF Pilot Project is a welcome opportunity for southern Oregon’s Jackson and 
Josephine counties, where the region, while making progress from the Great Recession, 
is nevertheless still considered economically distressed.3  
 
As part of its Sector Strategies initiative, the Rogue Workforce Partnership, in 
collaboration with our region’s economic development agency (SOREDI – Southern 
Oregon Regional Economic Development, Inc.), Regional Solutions Center, and Oregon 
Employment Department’s labor economist, has identified Advanced Manufacturing, E-
Commerce/Information Technology and Healthcare as three key industry sectors to 
focus particular attention on for career pathway development. These industry have a 
high proportion of high-demand, high-wage jobs. 
  

3 Business Oregon, Distressed Areas in Oregon, 2015, found 5/22/15 at  
http://www.oregon4biz.com/Publications/Distressed-List/ 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  4  
 

                                                           

http://www.oregon4biz.com/Publications/Distressed-List/


The Oregon Employment Department’s 2012-2022 for high-demand, high-wage jobs 
shows overall job growth.4  The TANF Pilot Project will target occupational areas in 
Healthcare, Advanced Manufacturing and E-Commerce/Information Technology. Table 1 
displays example occupations in these industries, projected job openings, wage 
information and current job vacancies. These selected occupations are displayed for 
illustrative purposes. Our efforts will focus on providing career pathway training 
opportunities (predominantly at RCC) which will result in customers getting jobs in 
occupations with the possibility of wage and career progression such as those 
represented below. 

 

Table 1:  TANF Pilot Project LABOR MARKET INFORMATION 

Occupational Areas Total Jobs 
2012-22 

High Wage or 
Demand** 

10th 
Percentile 

90th 
Percentile 

Annual 
Mean FTE 

Job Vacancy 
Report 

Medical Secretaries 552 No  $    11.16 $ 21.19  $32,499 447 

Pharmacy Technicians 120 Yes  $    12.21 $ 21.52  $ 34,344 84 

Sterile Processing Techs 27 Yes  $    12.44 $ 21.93  $ 34,411 31 

Medical Records and 
Health Info Technicians 

85 Yes  $    10.73 $ 24.52  $ 35,558 158 

Billing & Coding Clerks 192 Yes  $    12.25 $ 22.19  $ 34,656 87 

Medical Assistants 350 Yes  $    12.39 $ 18.88  $ 32,928 406 

Nursing Assistants 
(CNA1) 

 
417 

 
Yes 

$9.79 $ 17.55 $28.128 327 

Nursing Assistants 
(CNA2) 

NA NA $33,000 NA 

Practical Nurses 87 Yes  $    19.24 $ 28.28  $ 47,726 264 

Emergency Room Tech,  
EMT and Paramedics*** 

71 Yes  $    11.45 $ 26.66  $ 37,696 61 

Traditional Health 
Workers**** 

8 No  $    13.75 ???  $ 36,581 1 

Dental Assistants 125 Yes  $    12.63 $ 21.89  $ 35,040 200 

Physical Therapy Aides 33 No  $      9.14 $ 45.12  $ 24,833 24 

Phlebotomists*** 40 Yes  $    12.38 $ 20.17  $ 32,975 38 

4 Oregon Employment Department, Rogue Valley Employment Projections by Industry and Occupation for 2012-
2022, March 2014. 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  5  
 

                                                           



Clinical Lab Assistants 3 Yes  $    16.71 $ 35.75  $ 55,662 70 

Nurses 834 Yes $28.01 $ 46.56  $ 77,674 259 

Emergency Medical 
Services Management 

86 Yes $29.45 $54.34  $119,130 74 

General &  Operations 
Managers 

163 Yes $19.46 $85.62 $97, 629 40 

Architectural &  Civil 
Drafters 

-2 No $17.07 $34.43 $51,449 1 

Computer-Controlled 
Machine Tool Operator, 
Metal and Plastic 

35 no $11.59 $27.82 $39, 718 7 

Computer Numerically 
Controlled Machine Tool 
Programmers, Metal and 
Plastic 

2 no $17.70 $41.29 $57,885 0 

Software Developers, 
Systems Software 

5 no $30.25 $68.75 $100,724 0 

Graphic Designers 30 yes $13.20 $35.07 $47,630 8 

Welders, Cutters, 
Solderers & Braziers 

38 yes $13.33 $25.88 $40,286 10 

Helpers—Installation, 
Maintenance, & Repair 
Workers 

9 no $9.41 $22.96 $29,604 3 

Maintenance & Repair 
Workers, General 

84 no $11.29 $28.71 $39,997 21 

Web Developers 7 yes $18.36 $45.98 $69,399 2 

Tax Preparers 22 yes $12.51 $29.75 $41,974 5 

Bookkeeping, 
Accounting & Auditing 
Clerks 

234 no $11.60 $25.95 $37,679 39 

Sources:  
* Oregon Employment Department's (OED) Job Vacancy Survey for Jackson, Josephine, Douglas, Coos, Curry Counties, 2014.  
** OED, High Demand equals jobs that pay more than 2013 median wage.  
***OED, Regional wage not available. State wage data substituted.  
****Traditional Health Worker (THW): A newer category not well-documented by OED. Includes community health workers (CHW), 
peer support specialists, health navigation coaches, and doulas per Oregon HB3650, in 2011, to serve Medicaid population, but NOT 
equivalent to OED LMI so are underrepresented in THW data. For CHW alone, a survey of 3 coordinated care organizations in Jackson, 
Josephine, Curry, and a portion of Douglas County, estimates hiring 12-16 positions in the next 2 years. Locally, these workers earn 
$14-20/hour, but operate under a variety of job titles. 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  6  
 



G. Program Design & Services 

• DHS Case Management & Referral Services 

Self Sufficiency (SSP) administers the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), 
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) and Employment Related Day Care 
(ERDC) programs on behalf of families living below the poverty level in Jackson and 
Josephine Counties. SSP case managers regularly determine eligibility for all SSP 
programs, assess job/education readiness and refer these customers to the WSO 
Centers in Medford and Grants Pass, where fully integrated employment and training 
services are provided through combined funding.  
 
The current TANF caseload is 2,994 families. We believe we could identify enough 
interested individuals from this population to fill up to 75-150 TANF Pilot Project slots 
per year. An SSP case manager located in the Work Source Oregon (WSO) center will be 
the referral point for SSP customers. The case manager will hold a reduced caseload and 
specialize in supporting families participating in Vocational Training (VT) programs or 
other educational program paths as identified in this proposal.  

Referrals will be directed to the SSP specialized case manager in the WSO center in any 
of the following ways:  

 Case managers can refer potential customers based on a participant’s self-selection 
for an educational activity. The referral would be sent directly from the case 
manager to the WSO Center.   

 Some SSP customers participate in a monthly TANF “Marketplace” event in which a 
wide array of community partners and services are demonstrated and displayed. 
These TANF customers are able to self-refer to services at the WSO Center, and may 
be subsequently referred for consideration in an educational activity.  

 Participants leaving TANF due to employment, and receiving only medical and SNAP 
benefits, are also automatically eligible for ERDC benefits if under 185% FPL for 1 
year at initial application. If participant exceeds 250% FPL, they are no longer 
eligible. They may also continue to receive benefits after 1 year if still eligible at 
185% FPL.  

 DHS will collaborate with the local Child Care Resource Network and Early Learning 
Hubs to help families access high quality child care during hours of participation in 
work and educational activities.  

 SSP has contracted for a housing navigator who will work directly with SSP case 
managers managing cases that are connected to both Child Welfare and SSP. The 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  7  
 



Housing Authority of Jackson County has reserved 25 housing units specifically for 
this population. The housing navigator, in collaboration with the case manager, will 
also be able to refer these customers to the WSO as a way of connecting to 
education that will sustain their housing.  

 Referrals from the Strengthening Preserving and Reunifying Families (SPAR) project, 
dual program clients from both DHS Child Welfare and SSP. This program has 
recently implemented GED services for clients. Interests and referrals for Vocational 
Training may be a logical next step for some clients. 

 

• WorkSource Oregon Center Services 
Work Readiness / Career Exploration 

The diagram on page 9 displays the flow of clients from DHS to services at WorkSource 
Oregon Centers, and then on to Rogue Community College and other training providers. 
The diagram on page 10 displays the array of services available at the WSO Centers. 
 
For many clients, exploration of training options will begin at the WorkSource Oregon 
(WSO) One-Stop Centers. A comprehensive array of services will be available. In the 
Rogue Valley, contrary to much of the rest of the state, WSO Center services are 
provided in a highly integrated manner with braided funding from OED, WIOA and DHS.   
 
At WSO Centers, customers embark on career exploration and foundational skill-building 
activities developed with a human-centered approach. Center staff meets with customers 
at DHS to smooth the transition.  
 
WSO customers participate in a two-week Foundational Skills (work-readiness) workshop 
that provides core career-building and work-readiness skills in areas such as 
communication, conflict resolution, job search and completion of a National Career 
Readiness Certificate (NCRC) work-centered basic-skills credential. Customers 
demonstrate their proficiency in these areas, and also take the Career Information System 
assessment to determine career interest areas. 
 
Following the WSO Foundational Skills workshop, additional 4-week cohort-based 
workshops that introduce healthcare or clerical careers are offered to TANF clients and 
others.  
 
Successful completers of either Foundation Skills or the Healthcare or Clerical Cohorts 
interested in Vocational Training are referred to the Navigation Coach for suitability

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  8  
 



  
 
  

     

  

  

 

RCC TRAINING 
Degrees & Certificate Programs 

(Pell, WIOA, HPOG & other funds) 

EMPLOYMENT 

   

Abdill  
College 

FOUNDATIONAL  
SKILLS 

OCCUPATIONAL 
SKILLS 

Post-TANF Employed 
Workers on ERDC 
seeking next level 
training on career 
pathway 

CNA I & II & 
Other Training 

FOUNDATIONAL 
SKILLS WORKSHOP 

     

HEALTHCARE or 
CLERICAL COHORT 

TRAINING   

TANF 

JOB PLACEMENT 
SERVICES 

     

RCC - GED 
 
     ERDC 

Advanced Manufacturing  
 

Rogue Valley - Skills Pyramid & Client/Student Flow Chart 
TANF Pilot Project 

E-Commerce/IT  

 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  9  
 



Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  10  
 



 

determination before being referred to a WSO job coach for a criminal background 
check. Customers may be eligible for other WIOA or different grant-funded vocational 
skills training scholarships or On-the-Job Training subsidies. 
 
In addition to these services the Oregon Vocational Rehabilitation Services Division 
meets with clients at the WSO Center on a weekly basis to provide enhanced referrals 
and connections for clients with disabilities. 
 
Job Search & Job Placement  
Job search and job placement services are provided at the WSO Centers by both the 
Oregon Employment Department and ResCare (service provider staff providing WIOA 
and JOBS contracted services). Labor market information, resume and interview 
support, job club (Job Net), targeted work experience (internships), on-the-job training 
and job development services are provided. The WSO Center has an integrated Business 
Outreach Team that provides coordinated services to business employers, linking them 
with qualified job seekers. 
 

• Navigation Coach  
A Navigation Coach, funded through this pilot project, will prepare clients and help 
those selected to transition to training. The Navigation Coach ensues clients make the 
necessary connections at the post-secondary institution, monitors academic progress 
and success, and provides on-going support and coaching.  
 

• Adult Basic Skills 
The TANF Pilot Project would allow already enrolled Adult Basic Skills students at RCC to 
be assessed for Vocational Training “scholarships” at the WSO Center. Those deemed 
program-ready return to the Navigation Coach to sign up for a program orientation to 
complete the RCC enrollment process and the financial aid application, if applicable. 
Participants are also assisted with retrieving educational transcripts, getting signed up 
for the placement test, and are assigned to existing RCC academic adviser. The RCC 
placement test shows each student’s academic skill levels and helps the student and 
academic adviser to create each student’s detailed educational plan.  
 
WSO participants referred to ABS services will be joined by other ABS participants at a 
regular RCC GED orientation. All will work with the RCC academic advisor to build a 
comprehensive educational plan and, if appropriate, transition to Vocational Training.  
 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  11  
 



 

 
• Career Pathway Training  (Post-Secondary Training/Education) 

TANF and post-TANF clients on ERDC (Employment Related Day Care) who are 
interested in Vocational Training will be provided with an opportunity to engage in 
targeted Career Pathway Training at Rogue Community College or targeted final year 
degree completion coursework at Southern Oregon University or Oregon Tech. Training 
plans will be vetted for labor market and in-demand job openings. These “Scholarship 
and Stipend” awards will augment Pell financial aid and will help cover the cost over and 
above the Pell supported tuition, books, fees and other living expenses.  Awards will 
vary based on need for each client, and will range from $1,000 to $5,000, with an 
average award of $2,100. 
 
RCC’s extensive system of career pathways (CP) are 12-44 credit certificates, 1- year 44-
60 credit certificates, 2-year degrees, and articulations to 4-year degrees (see link at 
http://www.roguecc.edu/Programs/CareerPathways/certificates.asp).  The CP concept 
is that students complete a short-term CP certificate for entry-level skills and above.  
Students are encouraged to work and remain in school to achieve a next-level 
certificate.  RCC’s CP Roadmaps illustrate these college pathways with corresponding 
real-time labor market information at every level. Almost all certificates and associate 
degrees articulate to a bachelor’s degree at a regional university. This pilot project 
would offer opportunities in the following programs of study: 
 Business Assistant: Customer Service 
 Business Assistant: Small Business Management 
 CAD Assistant 
 Computer Numerical Control Operator 
 Computer Support Technician: Computer Software Specialist 
 Graphic Design: Adobe Applications Technician 
 Industrial Welding Technology: Welder's Helper 
 Web Development: Website Assistant 
 EST -- Business, Management, Marketing, and Related Support Services 
 EST -- Health Aides/  Attendants / Orderlies 
 EST -- Health Professions And Related Clinical Sciences 
 Landscape Technician 
 Limited Electrician Apprenticeship Technologies 
 Retail Management 

 
 

H. Addressing Benefit Cliffs  
As part of the pilot project, our region will work with state-level DHS and other partners to 
map out and address the “Benefit Cliffs” as part of our program strategy. As part of other 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  12  
 

http://www.roguecc.edu/Programs/CareerPathways/certificates.asp


 

legislative initiatives, changes in ERDC and TANF are anticipated to help smooth out these 
cliffs. The TANF Pilot Project will work with these new benefit eligibility levels and will target 
career skills training, job placement and job/wage progression strategies so that clients can 
propel themselves past these cliffs and on to true self-sufficiency. 
 
We will seek to target ERDC slots specifically for these job/wage progressing customers so 
that the flow of clients from TANF to ERDC is an up and out of poverty strategy. 
  

 
I. Partnerships & Collaboration 

• The Rogue Workforce Partnership, DHS and OED (as two state agencies) will be 
providing significant in-kind resources in support of this project. The TANF Pilot Project 
is built upon this current WSO Center and DHS operational capacity. DHS, OED and RWP 
all contribute significantly to blend and braid funding streams, grants benefits, training 
investments and staff capacity to weave together integrated capacity at the WSO 
Centers, DHS Self-Sufficiency offices and other partner agency locations. Table 2 
describes the range of partners and leveraged resources.  

Table 2 – Partners and Leveraged Resources 
Organization   
Funding Streams & Programs 

Grant Benefits or  
Training Investments  

(Approximate $ Amounts /  In-Kind)  

Staff Providing Services  
(In-kind /  

Existing Service Capacity)  

Oregon Department of Human 
Services  
TANF-JOBS, SNAP, & ERDC programs 

$796 ERDC per individual per 
month 

$352 support services plus TANF 
per individual per month 

Yes 
DHS Case Managers 

Rogue Workforce Partnership 
WIOA Adult, Dislocated Worker & Youth 
programs 

Up to $2500 per individual for On-
the-Job Training 

Yes 
WIOA funded staff at WSO 

Centers  

Oregon Employment Department  
Wagner-Peyser and State Employment 
Department Administrative Funds (SEDAF),  

Not Applicable Yes 
W-P/ SEDAF funded staff 

at WSO Centers 

Housing Partners 
HUD & Section 8 Housing program 

$352 support services plus TANF 
per individual per month 

$1200 per individual in housing 

Yes 
Housing Authority staff  

SPAR Partners $352 support services plus TANF 
per individual per month 

 

Yes 
SPAR partners: On-Track, 

DHS-Child Welfare 

Others To be determined To be determined 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  13  
 



• In addition, our region is a statewide leader in weaving together a broad Southern 
Oregon Success “Collective Impact”5 initiative that brings together healthcare, early 
learning, K-20 education, social service (including System of Care), workforce, economic 
development and business partners. TANF Pilot Project partners will also engage these 
partners in our client self-sufficiency work, and leverage partnerships and resources 
wherever and whenever possible. 

J. Numbers Served
• 75 clients served / year
• 150 clients served total in biennium

K. Budget

July 2015 to June 2017 (2 year biennium)

5 Stanford Social Innovation Review, Winter 2011, http://www.ssireview.org/articles/entry/collective_impact 

Items Amount 
Personnel (wage & fringe) 
 Career Navigator  (0.75fte x $53,000 / year) 78,750 
  Project Manager (RWP .08fte x $9,400/year) 18,600 

Overhead 8,150 

Community College Scholarships / Stipends  
$1,000 to $5,000 awards/person x 150 clients (average $2,100 
per person); augmenting Pell-funded Tuition, Books, Fees & 
Living Expenses 

325,000 

RCC Program Management 8,500 
Support Services Contingency Fund 24,500 
Contracted Services (OED wage record matches) 1,500 

Administration (7% -- includes RWP & Svc Provider) 35,000 

Total $500,000 

Rogue Valley TANF Pilot Project  |  14 

http://www.ssireview.org/articles/entry/collective_impact




 

 

100 East Main Street, Suite A, Medford, OR 97501 
www.rogueworkforce.org 

Growing Skills - Building Careers - Boosting the Economy 
 
 
 

Action Brief 

To:   Rogue Workforce Partnership  

From:   Aurora King, Director of Business and Innovation 
 
Date:  September 23, 2015 

Subject:  Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Policy for Incumbent Worker Training 
 
Background 
 
The purpose of incumbent worker training is to meet the needs of employer(s) to retain a skilled 
workforce or avert the need to lay off employees. Per WIOA section 134(c) (4)(A) i, Workforce 
Development Boards may reserve and use up to 20 percent of the funds allocated to the local area for 
incumbent worker training programs.   The attached policy applies to staff and all contractors, 
grantees, sub-grantees, and any other authorized of WIOA Title 1B incumbent worker training funds in 
Region 8.  

Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Rogue Workforce Partnership approves the attached incumbent worker 
policy which requires a non-Federal share of cost from the employer. The employer may provide the 
share in cash, or in-kind, and is to be fairly evaluated by Rogue Workforce Partnership.  

Preference will be given to incumbent worker trainings that fall within these categories: 

a.  An in-demand industry sector or occupation (that has a substantial current or potential impact 
through jobs that lead to economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for advancement), 

b.  The local region’s sector strategies, which include Advanced Manufacturing, Information 
Technology, Electronic Commerce, Healthcare, or 

c. For jobs as determined to be in demand by the support of local labor market information.  

 
Additional preference includes the following criteria: 
 

a. If the training allows an incumbent worker to move into another position, and the employer will 
“backfill” with a new hire for the employee’s previous position through the WorkSource Oregon 
Center when training is complete; 

b. Employer has demonstrated a good “track record” with utilizing WorkSource Oregon programs; 
or 

c. Business has demonstrated growth and an increase in revenue. 

 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Rogue Workforce Partnership approves the attached incumbent worker training policy.  



 

 

100 East Main Street, Suite A, Medford, OR 97501 
www.rogueworkforce.org 

Growing Skills - Building Careers - Boosting the Economy 
 
 
 

INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING POLICY 
 

Purpose 
To provide guidance for the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Incumbent Worker Training 
service activity for incumbent workers in Jackson and Josephine Counties.  
 
Requirements 
Per WIOA section 134(c) (4)(A) i, Workforce Development Boards may reserve and use up to 20 percent of the 
funds allocated to the local area for incumbent worker training programs. Governing guidelines also include 
federal statues, as well as applicable state and local funding stream requirements for Incumbent Worker 
Training.   

Scope 

Incumbent Worker Training shall be carried out by Contractor and overseen and monitored by the Rogue 
Workforce Partnership for the purpose of assisting incumbent workers in obtaining the skills necessary to retain 
employment or avert layoffs.  This policy applies to staff and all contractors, grantees, sub-grantees, and any 
other authorized provider of WIOA Title 1B incumbent worker training funds in Region 8.  

Policy 

In accordance with the WIOA Act, Contractor will use funds for training designed to meet the special 
requirements of an employer (or group of employers) to retain a skilled workforce or avert the needs to lay off 
employees. This will be accomplished by assisting workers in obtaining the skills necessary to retain 
employment, and conducted with a commitment by the employer to retain or avert laying off incumbent 
worker(s) that are trained in order to increase the competitiveness of the employee and/or employer.  

When determining eligibility, Contractors shall take into account: 

a. The characteristics of the potential participants in the program; 
b. The relationship of the training to the competitiveness of a participant and the employer;  
c. The number of employees participating in the training; 
d. The wage and benefit levels of those employees at present and anticipated upon completion of the 

training, and  
e. The existence of other training resources and advancement opportunities provided by the employer. 

Employers participating in the program carried out under this policy shall be required to pay for the non-Federal 
share of the cost of providing the training to incumbent workers of the employers. The Rogue Workforce 
Partnership shall establish the non-Federal share of such cost (taking into consideration the factors listed in the 
previous paragraph). The non-Federal share shall not be less than: 

a. 10 percent of the cost, for employers with not more than 50 employees; 
b. 25 percent of the cost, for employers with more than 50 employees, but not more than 100 

employees; and  
c. 50 percent of the cost, for employers with more than 100 employees. 



100 E. Main St., Suite A, Medford, OR 97501 
www.rogueworkforce.org 

The calculation of the non-Federal share provided by an employer participating in the program may include the 
amount of the wages paid by the employer to a worker while the worker is attending a training program funded 
through WIOA.  The employer may provide the share in cash, or in-kind, and is to be fairly evaluated by Rogue 
Workforce Partnership.  

Preference will be given to incumbent worker trainings that fall within these categories: 

a.  An in-demand industry sector or occupation (that has a substantial current or potential impact through 
jobs that lead to economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for advancement), 

b.  The local region’s sector strategies, which include Advanced Manufacturing, Information Technology, 
Electronic Commerce, Healthcare, or 

c. For jobs as determined to be in demand by the support of local labor market information.  

 
Additional preference includes the following criteria: 
 

a. If the training allows an incumbent worker to move into another position, and the employer will 
“backfill” with a new hire for the employee’s previous position through the WorkSource Oregon Center 
when training is complete; 

b. Employer has demonstrated a good “track record” with utilizing WorkSource Oregon programs; or 
c. Business has demonstrated growth and an increase in revenue. 

 
For other discretionary grant projects that provides OJTs as a training opportunity, a different hourly wage gain 
requirement may be established for the project through Rogue Workforce Partnership. 
 

 
APPROVED:___________________________________________ ADOPTION DATE:________________________ 
                    Chair, Rogue Workforce Partnership 



 

 

100 East Main Street, Suite A, Medford, OR 97501 
www.rogueworkforce.org 

Growing Skills - Building Careers - Boosting the Economy 
 
 
 

 

Action Brief 

To:   Rogue Workforce Partnership  

From:   Aurora King, Director of Business and Innovation 
 
Date:  September 23, 2015 

Subject:  Policy Update for On-the-Job Training 
 
Background 
 
The purpose of an On-the-Job Training contract (OJT) is to assist businesses in training and retaining 
skilled, productive workers.  Through the OJT contract and training plan, occupational training is 
provided for the participant in exchange for the reimbursement of up to 50 percent of the wages 
paid during the training period.  OJT’s may be used to help train new employees, eligible current 
employees and employees hired to regular permanent employment through a staffing service 
relationship.  This policy applies to staff and all contractors, grantees, sub-grantees, and any other 
authorized provider of Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Title 1B training funds, as 
well as all other funds allocated for On-the-Job Training.  

 
Recommended Action 
 
Staff recommends that the Rogue Workforce Partnership approve the attached amended OJT policy. 
WIOA legislation allows local boards to spend up to 20% of training funds on incumbent workers. This 
policy has been updated to allow for OJT employer training reimbursements to be made for 
incumbent workers. 
 
 

 



 

 

100 East Main Street, Suite A, Medford, OR 97501 
www.rogueworkforce.org 

Growing Skills - Building Careers - Boosting the Economy 
 
 
 

ON-THE-JOB TRAINING POLICY 
 

Purpose 
To provide guidance for the (OJT) service activity for incumbent and transitioning workers in Jackson and 
Josephine Counties, funded under Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Title IB, as well other 
funds allocated for OJT’s.  
 
Requirements 
Per WIOA section WIOA 134(c) (4)(A) i,  Workforce Development Boards may use up to 20 percent of the funds 
allocated to the local area for incumbent worker training programs. Governing guidelines also include WIOA 
134(c) (3)(D) ii federal statues as well as applicable state and local funding stream requirements for On-the-Job 
Training. 

Scope 

The purpose of an On-the-Job Training (OJT) contract is to assist businesses in training and retaining skilled, 
productive workers.  Through the OJT contract and training plan, occupational training is provided for the 
participant in exchange for the reimbursement of up to 50 percent of the wages paid by the employer during the 
training period.  OJT’s may be used to help train new employees, eligible current employees and employees 
hired to regular permanent employment through a staffing service relationship.  This policy applies to staff and 
all contractors, grantees, sub-grantees, and any other authorized provider of WIOA Title 1B training funds.  

Policy 

In accordance with the WIOA Act, funds for OJT’s will be used for individuals in need of on-the-job skills training 
in order to secure new employment or to provide additional skills training to advance in their job or to prevent 
job loss. The required skills and business needs will be determined and appropriately documented on an 
individual basis prior to contractual agreement. The candidate’s “skills gap” must be clearly articulated, including 
a plan for the delivery of training to the individual, as well as an evaluation process to ensure that training was 
delivered and a standard was met. These funds are provided as a wage reimbursement for up to 50% of the 
employee’s wages, and are provided to the employer, or the employer’s financial representative, upon 
completion of the training agreement.  

Employers will be reimbursed at $3,500 per OJT, and at the discretion of RWP staff, in coordination with 
appropriate contractor staff, to approve up to $5,000 for higher wage/higher skills training opportunities. The 
following criteria apply to the implementation of an OJT whereas the employment position: 

• Has a wage of at least $10.00 per hour; 
• Is at least 30 work hours or more per week; 
• Offers benefits to the employee. (If no medical benefits are offered, it’s preferred that the job pay at 

least $11.00 per hour.) 
• Has a training period for no less than 4 weeks and no more than 26 weeks (or six months) and; 
• Is preferred to be an in-demand industry sector or occupation that falls in the local region’s sector 

strategies, which include Advanced Manufacturing, Information Technology, Electronic Commerce, 
Healthcare, or as determined to be in demand by the support of local labor market information.  



100 E. Main St., Suite A, Medford, OR 97501 
www.rogueworkforce.org 

 

Incumbent workers must also, as a result of successfully completing the OJT: 

• Expect a wage gain of at least $1.00 per hour or more by the end of the training period or sooner; and 

• Expect an upgrade to a new position with a different scope of work and title; or 

• A case-by-case exception is granted by the contractor.  Examples of exceptions might include (but are not 
limited to) a worker who has a disability and requires retraining; medical benefits and regular employment 
status are gained as a result of the training; or a layoff can be averted through retraining. 

 
Additional preference includes the following: 
 

• Employer will “backfill” with a new hire for the employee’s previous position through the WorkSource 
Oregon Center when training is complete;or 

• Employer offers concurrent skill building opportunities for the employee to access, such as PowerUp 
Academy trainings, any short-term occupational skills trainings at Rogue Community College, or through 
ResCare Academy online; or 

• Employer has demonstrated a good “track record” with utilizing WorkSource Oregon programs; or 
• Business falls within a “traded-sector” industry; or 
• Business has demonstrated growth and an increase in revenue.  

 
For other discretionary grant projects that provides OJTs as a training opportunity, a different hourly wage gain 
requirement may be established through the Rogue Workforce Partnership for the project. 
 

 
APPROVED:_______________________________________________ ADOPTION DATE:____________________ 
                     Chair, Rogue Workforce Partnership 



 

 

100 East Main Street, Suite A, Medford, OR 97501 
www.rogueworkforce.org 

Growing Skills - Building Careers - Boosting the Economy 
 
 
 

Information Brief 

To:   Rogue Workforce Partnership  

From:   Aurora King, Director of Business and Innovation 
 
Date:  September 23, 2015 

Subject:  Rapid Response Activities 
 
The Regional Rapid Response Information team convened and facilitated the following Information 
Sessions in Jackson and Josephine Counties over the past quarter:  

Rapid Response Information Sessions, PY 15 

Date Business County 
Affected 
Workers 

Survey 
Responses 

Response 
Rate 

8/7/2015 Core-Mark Josephine 47 32 68% 
8/26/2015 Oil Can Henrys Josephine 12 4 33% 
9/2/2015 Motorcycle Superstore Jackson 70 28 40% 

9/4/2015 
Haggens Food and 
Pharmacy Josephine 63 30 47% 

  Total   192     
      

 

       
RWP staff will be working with WorkSource Oregon’s Integrated Business Outreach team to organize a 
reverse job fair targeting the affected workers in the coming quarter.  

 



































































Interactive  |  May 8, 2013

Should Everyone Go to College?
By: Isabel V. Sawhill and Stephanie Owen

Not all college degrees or all college graduates are created equal. On average, the
benefits of a college degree outweigh their costs. However, in “Should Everyone Go to
College?” Brookings Senior Fellow Isabel Sawhill and Stephanie Owen argue that it is
important to compare the return on investment by other variables, such as choice of
major and college selectivity, in order to better assess whether or not a fouryear
degree will significantly improve an individual’s future earnings.

http://www.brookings.edu/research/papers/2013/05/08-should-everyone-go-to-college-owen-sawhill
http://www.brookings.edu/experts/sawhilli






Sources:

1.  Michael Greenstone and Adam Looney, "Where is the Best Place to Invest $102,000 – In Stocks, Bonds, or a

http://www.brookings.edu/research/papers/2011/06/25-education-greenstone-looney


College Degree?"
(Washington, D.C.: The Brookings Institution, June 2011).

2.  Mark Schneider, "How Much Is That Bachelor’s Degree Really Worth? The Million Dollar Misunderstanding,"
(Washington, D.C.: American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Research, May 2009).

3.  Tiffany Julian, "WorkLife Earnings by Field of Degree and Occupation for People With a Bachelor’s Degree:
2011," (Washington, D.C.: U.S. Census Bureau, October 2012).

4.  Frederick M. Hess, Mark Schneider, Kevin Carey, and Andrew P. Kelly, "Diplomas and Dropouts: Which
Colleges Actually Graduate Their Students (and Which Don’t)," (Washington, D.C.: American Enterprise Institute
for Public Policy Research, June 2009).

SUMMARY

On average, the benefits of a college degree outweigh their costs. But Isabel Sawhill and Stephanie Owen argue
that it is important to compare other variables, such as choice of major and college selectivity, in order to better
assess the return on investment of a college degree.

AUTHORS

Isabel V. Sawhill
Senior Fellow, Economic Studies

@isawhill

Stephanie Owen
Senior Research Assistant, Economic Studies, Center on Children and Families

http://www.aei.org/article/education/higher-education/how-much-is-that-bachelors-degree-really-worth/
https://twitter.com/isawhill
http://www.brookings.edu/about/centers/ccf
http://www.brookings.edu/about/programs/economics
http://www.census.gov/prod/2012pubs/acsbr11-04.pdf
http://www.brookings.edu/experts/sawhilli
http://www.brookings.edu/research/papers/2011/06/25-education-greenstone-looney
http://www.aei.org/papers/education/higher-education/diplomas-and-dropouts/
http://www.brookings.edu/about/programs/economics

	20150923 RWP-WIB Agenda v Final
	20150309 rwp minutes for approval and signature
	20150511 rwp minutes for approval and signature
	20150923 RWP action brief Region 8 local plan modifications
	20150923 RWP action brief appointment of One Stop Equal Opportunity Officer
	OWIB strategic plan Executive Summary
	20150923 Affirm Selection of WSO Centers Service Provider - Action Brief
	20150624 TANF Pilot Project Proposal - Final
	Scan
	RWP Incumbent Worker Policy Memo
	RWP Incumbent Work Policy
	RWP OJT Policy Memo
	RWP OJT Policy
	RWP Info Brief Rapid Response Update 09212015
	College & Careers for All Hub draft proposal with notes
	Scan000
	Scan001
	ngela Duckworth University of Pennsylvania
	Infographic_ Should Everyone Go to College_ _ Brookings Institution 2



